
ITEMS RECEIVED AFTER THE PRODUCTION OF THE REPORT 
FOR THE PLANNING COMMITTEE 

TO BE HELD ON 15 DECEMBER, 2021 
 
 

Page 
 

Application 
 

Location Item 
No. 
 

Description 
 

P.38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P.61 
 
 
 
 
 

2021/00622/FUL 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2021/01300/FUL 
 
 
 
 
 

81-85, Holton Road, Barry 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ty Gerrig, Groes Faen 
Road, Peterston Super Ely 
 
 
 
 

1. 
 
 
2. 
 
 
 
3.  
 
 
4. 

Comments from Cllr Ian Johnson 
missing from report 
 
Comments from Cllr Neil Moore 
referring to representation received 
from neighbour 
 
Additional comments from Highway 
Authority 
 
Comments from applicant regarding 
re-siting of fence to overcome 
highway concerns 

 
 



MATTERS ARISING FOR COMMITTEE 

COMMITTEE DATE: 15 DECEMBER, 2021 

Application No.:2021/00622/FUL Case Officer: Mr. Ceiri Rowlands 

Location: 81-85, Holton Road, Barry 
Proposal: Part demolition, extension and conversion of the upper floors of no. 81 - 

85 Holton Road to provide 25 no. affordable residential flats, together with 
internal and external alterations and associated works 

From: Cllr Ian Johnson 

Comments: 
The following comments were provided by Cllr Ian Johnson on 31st May 2021. 

“Although the principle of upper floor housing above Holton Road shops is acceptable and 
welcomed, the proposal for 25 flats on this constrained site represents an over-
development of the area - described in the Planning and Design Statement as 250 units 
per hectare. 

I have concerns about the additional noise generated by this number of residents and the 
impact upon other local residents. Despite being a town centre location, the area is quiet 
after shopping hours. 

I am concerned that the amount of space given over to waste and recycling within the site 
is insufficient for the number of anticipated residents. 

Despite the town centre location, it should be anticipated that some residents will want to 
operate a motor vehicle. If the planning application is successful, the Council should 
consider options for this as the surrounding streets are highly over-subscribed with 
residential parking permits in operation, rather than just leave this to chance. 

I reserve the right to make further observations on this planning application, including at 
committee.” 

Officer Response: 

The Officer’s report states in error that no comments relating to the merits of the proposal 
have been received by the local ward Councillors. However, the issues noted above have 
been considered in reaching the outlined recommendation for approval. 

In relation to density, Policy MD4 (Housing Density) of the LDP states residential 
development should have a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare, unless a lower 
density is justified based on the policy criteria. There is no maximum density prescribed by 
this policy. Flatted developments such as this will be high density by nature and there is 
sufficient space within the building to accommodate 25 flats. It is stated within the 
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Affordable Housing section of the report that the Welsh Development Quality 
Requirements (WDQR) would be applicable to this development. These requirements 
include minimum internal space requirements. 

In relation to noise, matters relating to anti-social behaviour is addressed within the 
Affordable Housing section of the Officers report. The residential use is not inherently 
noise generating and there was also no objection from Shared Regulatory Services in 
relation to noise disturbance. 

The issue of parking congestion is addressed within Parking and Highway Safety section 
of the Officer’s report. There was no objection from the Highways Authority in relation to 
parking congestion, who also administer the residents’ permit scheme in operation nearby. 
There is an internal bin storage area provided and this is considered acceptable to serve 
the development. 

Action required:  

Members to note. No further action. 
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MATTERS ARISING FOR COMMITTEE 

COMMITTEE DATE: 15 DECEMBER, 2021 

Application No.:2021/00622/FUL Case Officer: Mr. Ceiri Rowlands 

Location: 81-85, Holton Road, Barry 
Proposal: Part demolition, extension and conversion of the upper floors of no. 81 - 

85 Holton Road to provide 25 no. affordable residential flats, together with 
internal and external alterations and associated works 

From: Cllr Neil Moore 

Comments: 
The following comments were provided by Cllr Neil Moore on 14th December 2021. 

“I have received a representation from a resident that I know personally and who lives in 
Newlands Street.  She is very concerned about the above development, due to the lack of 
adequate parking in the area already. 

I know that she works in the hospitality sector and when arriving home late at night she 
rarely if ever is able to park in the street as it stands at the moment.  She has to park 
elsewhere and then move her car first thing each morning.  I also believe that her husband 
and neighbours have registered to speak at the planning meeting and made 
representations, so I am sure they can give you first-hand knowledge and experiences.   

Therefore, I would simply ask that Committee consider these concerns before coming to a 
final decision on the officer’s recommendation to approve the development without any car 
parking available.” 

Officer Response: 

The Representations section of the Officer’s report provides a summary of matters raised 
in representations, including parking. These have been taken into consideration and the 
matter is addressed within the Parking and Highway Safety section of the report. 

Action required:  

Members to note. No further action. 
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MATTERS ARISING FOR COMMITTEE 

COMMITTEE DATE : 15 DECEMBER, 2021 

Application No.:2021/01300/FUL Case Officer: Guy Watkins 

Location: Ty Cerrig, Groes Faen Road, Peterston Super Ely 
Proposal: Erect a 5" feather edge fence to part of the front and the side of the 

property.  The fence proposed is to be of the height 1.95 metres and will 
be behind the existing retaining wall 

From: Ahmad Asadi - Highway Engineer 

Summary of Comments: 

Supplementary comments received: 

It is clear that newly built wall, obstructs the vision splay. 

Groes Faen Road is derestricted road and without any traffic data, it is very difficult to 
understand the existing flows of traffic within the vicinity of the site, however, the road 
alignments suggest that the average speed could be lower than usual.   

The build out section of the wall adjacent to the main road, is roughly 1.25m from the 
telegraph post and this section mainly is causing the vision splay obstruction. 

Fencing above the wall (adjacent to the adopted highway) would further restrict the vision 
splays and as a result the Highway Authority would object to the proposal in the interest of 
highway / Public Safety.  

For information, within the visibility envelope, no obstructions, inclusive of fencing and 
boundary walls shall exceed 600mm in height and any planting shall be located at the rear 
of the visibility splays.  

The objection on loss of visibility is maintained. 

Officer Response: 

Comments noted. 

Action required: 

None. 
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MATTERS ARISING FOR COMMITTEE 

COMMITTEE DATE : 15 DECEMBER, 2021 

Application No.:2021/01300/FUL Case Officer: Guy Watkins 

Location: Ty Cerrig, Groes Faen Road, Peterston Super Ely 
Proposal: Erect a 5" feather edge fence to part of the front and the side of the 

property.  The fence proposed is to be of the height 1.95 metres and will 
be behind the existing retaining wall 

From: Applicant – Miss Caroline Jones 

Summary of Comments: 

Applicant has proposed alterations, following discussion with the Council’s Highway 
Engineer with regard what would be acceptable, as set out below : 

• The fence would be set back by 1-1.25 metres from the retaining wall.

• The area in between the fence and the wall would then be landscaped with
chippings

The retaining wall at the front of the property to be reduced height at the front to aid the 
visibility splay (between 600-800mm in height)  

Officer Response: 

Whilst the applicants proposed changes are noted, no plans or details have been 
submitted to fully assess the acceptability, or otherwise changes. 

The Highway Engineer has responded, to the above, and states that as long as visibility 
splays are not obstructed (by the wall or the fence), the Highway Authority would accept 
the stated proposal.  

Whilst the proposed amendments  may overcome the highway safety concerns with the 
current development,  in terms of the visual impact on the street scene in this rural setting, 
setting the fence back by 1-1.25 m, would still result in an unacceptable visual impact due 
to the height of the fence and wall in combination.  

Action required: 

None 
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